
Civic Centre, Home Gardens, Dartford, Kent, DA1 1DR 
Tel: 01322 343434 Fax: 01322 343422 Web: www.dartford.gov.uk 

 
 
 

 

Audit Board 
 

 
 

 
 

    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A meeting of the above Board will be held on 

 
Wednesday 22 January 2020 

 
at 7.00pm at the Civic Centre, Dartford 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Councillor D A Hammock (Chairman) 
Councillor Mrs J A Ozog (Vice-Chairman) 

Councillor D Butler-Ruhle 
Councillor R Gosine 

Councillor S N Gosine 
Councillor P M Harman 

Councillor A R Lloyd 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 



 

 

AUDIT BOARD 
 

 AGENDA 
 

Wednesday 22 January 2020 
 
 

1. Apologies for Absence.   
 

2. Declarations of Interest.   
 

 To receive declarations of interest from Members including the 
terms(s) of any  Grants of Dispensations by the Managing 
Director. 
 

 

3. Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 23 
October 2019  

MD 
(Pages 1 - 10) 

   
 

 

4. Urgent Items   
 

 The Chairman will announce his decision as to whether there are 
any urgent items and their position on the agenda. 
 

 

5. References from Other Committees (IF ANY)   
 

 There are presently no references from other Committees for the 
Board to consider. 
 

 

6. Member Development Training   
 

 At the Board meeting on 23 October 2019 Members received the 
first instalment of a programme of ‘bit-sized’ training sessions on 
‘Internal Audit Standards’ from the Internal Audit Manager [Min. 
No. 19 refers]. 
 
For the Board meeting on 22 January 2020 Members will receive 
a further presentation on ‘Risk Management’.  
 

 

7. Report from the External Auditor   
(Pages 11 - 36) 

 To note the attached report and Appendices from the External 
Auditor, Grant Thornton UK. 
 

 



 

8. Internal Audit Update Report (January 2020)   
(Pages 37 - 58) 

 The report provides Members of the Audit Board with an update 
on the work of the Audit Partnership, including Internal Audit 
activity, service developments and progress towards delivery of 
the 2019/20 Audit Plan. 
 

 

9. Selective Invoice Checks   
(Pages 59 - 62) 

 Following the Board meeting held on 23 October 2019 [Min. No. 
25 refers], the Chairman chose a further 5 (five) creditor 
payments for checking from a list supplied by the Internal Audit 
Manager of all transactions from the current quarter.  
 
This report summarises the findings of that exercise and provides 
Members with the opportunity to select further payments for 
checking. 
 

 

 



1 

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT BOARD 
 

MINUTES of the meeting of the Audit Board held on Wednesday 23 October 2019 at 
7.00 pm. 
 

 
PRESENT: 
 

Councillor D A Hammock (Chairman) 
Councillor D Butler 
Councillor S N Gosine 
Councillor P M Harman 
Councillor A R Lloyd 
 

 
ABSENT: 
 

Councillor Mrs. J A Ozog (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor Mrs. R Gosine 
 

 
IN ATTENDANCE: Sarah Martin – Strategic Director (Internal Services) 

& Section 151 Officer 
 Sheri Green – Strategic Director (External 

Services) & Monitoring Officer 
 Tim Sams – Financial Services Manager 
 Russell 

Heppleston 
– Internal Audit Manager 

   
 

14. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Mrs R Gosine, Mrs J A 
Ozog, and the Head of Legal Services Mrs Kelly-Stone. 
 
The Chairman noted the presence of the Strategic Director (Internal 
Services), the Financial Services Manager and the Internal Audit Manager, 
and welcomed the presence of the Strategic Director (External Services) to 
present agenda items 9 and 10 in the absence of the Head of Legal Services. 
 
In the absence of any representatives from Grant Thornton UK (External 
Auditors), the Chairman proposed that agenda items 9 and 10 be taken 
immediately following the Member development briefing.   
 

15. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

16. CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 17 JULY 
2019  
 
  RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the Minutes of the Board meeting held on 17 July 2019 be 
confirmed as accurate. 

Page 1 Agenda Item 3



AUDIT BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 23 OCTOBER 2019 
 
 

2 

 
17. URGENT ITEMS  

 
The Chairman confirmed that there were no urgent items of business for the 
Board to consider that evening. 
 

18. REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES (IF ANY)  
 
There were no references from other Committees for the Board to consider. 
 

19. MEMBER DEVELOPMENT BRIEFING  
 
Following agreement by the Board on 17 July 2019 [Min. No. 13 refers], 
Members received the first instalment of a programme of ‘bit-sized’ briefing 
sessions with the aim of equipping Board Members with up to date knowledge 
and terminology of auditing affairs.  
 
The initial instalment of briefing from the Internal Audit Manager focussed on 
‘Internal Audit Standards’ and the changes in the role of the Internal Audit (IA) 
function, from a servant of management focussing primarily on accounting 
and finance matters [Institute of Internal Auditors Statement of 
Responsibilities 1947], through an evolutionary series of reviews undertaken 
in 1981, 1999 and again in 2013 and 2017. Those reviews had combined to 
achieve significant changes to the original IA function [as stated in 1947] to 
the present day role of IA as an independent, objective assurance and 
consultancy activity, designed to add value and improve an organisations 
operations, independent of management.  
 
In specific terms, the modern day IA function helped an organisation to 
accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to 
evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and 
governance processes and with this oversight role, to act as a ‘critical friend’. 
 
The IA function remained under the line-management of the Strategic Director 
(Internal Services) as the Council’s Section 151 Officer (see below), but 
crucially, reported independently to the Audit Board and as required, the 
Managing Director. 
 
Members were advised that as the role and function of IA had evolved, a 
standards regime had evolved in tandem. Key reference documents in that 
standards regime were:  
 

 1972: Local Government Act (Section 151) 

 1978: Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing 

 2002: Professional Practices Framework 

 2006: Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government 

 2009: International Professional Practices Framework (IPPF) 

 2013: Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) 

 2015: Revisions to the IPPF 

Page 2Agenda Item 3



AUDIT BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 23 OCTOBER 2019 
 
 

3 

 2015: Accounts and Audit Regulations (proper Internal Audit Practices) 

 2017: Revisions to the PSIAS 
 
The establishment of PSIAS from 1 April 2013 (revised in March 2017) was 
particularly important, as it aligned global and international ‘public sector’ 
standards for the IA function, and confirmed the ‘risk-based’ approach to IA 
work going forward. A further step in that evolutionary process was the 
creation of the Internal Audit Standards Advisory Board (IASAB). ‘Standard 
Setters’ who contributed to the working of the IASAB were: 
 

 CIPFA (Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy) 

 Department of Health (DH) 

 Welsh Government 

 Department of Finance 

 HM Treasury 

 The Scottish Government 
 
The IAM informed Members that standards were at the core of the IA function 
and governed all its activities to achieve the IA Mission – ‘to enhance and 
protect organisational value, by providing risk-based and objective assurance, 
advice and insight’ – bounded by mandatory guidance which covered Core 
principles, the Definition of Internal Audit and the Code of Ethics which 
underpinned all IA judgements.   
 
In addition to mandatory guidance the IPPF 2015 model recommended the 
formulation of Implementation and Supplemental guidance to underpin the IA 
function. The Audit Partnership had started to formulate such guidance for 
both Sevenoaks and Dartford Councils in 2018/19 and hoped to complete the 
recommended guidance exercise during 2019/20. 
 
The IAM advised that the Audit Board held the responsibity for providing 
oversight of the Audit Partnership, and to agree the Annual Audit Plan and 
Strategy. In tandem with that work, the IA team produced an annual Internal 
Audit Opinion, and undertook an annual IA Self-Assessment exercise, based 
on quarterly reports to the Board [Min. No. 22 refers].  
 
Those ongoing IA exercises were underpinned by an external quality 
assessment (EQA) of the Council’s IA function every 5 (five) years. The next 
EQA was due to be undertaken in 2020, following the 2015 EQA and 2017 
follow-up exercise undertaken by PricewaterhouseCoopers. In response to a 
specific question from the Chairman, the IAM confirmed that the Council’s IA 
function was in good shape, with no drastic changes required in the lead-up to 
the 2020 EQA; merely the continued embedding of already identified and 
agreed measures. Members were also advised of the different approaches 
adopted by Internal verses External Auditors, and how the two might work 
better together for the increased benefit of local authorities, including the 
assessment process undertaken by the public sector to verify the work of 
external audit companies. 
 

Page 3 Agenda Item 3



AUDIT BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 23 OCTOBER 2019 
 
 

4 

Members received printed copies of the briefing material to retain for future 
reference, and to build towards a library of guidance documents for ready 
reference at the conclusion of the briefing programme [July 2020]. 
 
The Chairman and Members thanked the Internal Audit Manager for an 
excellent presentation, and looked forward to receiving further instalments of 
development briefing for Board Members in the coming months.   
 
The Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Finance suggested that Members of the 
Council’s Treasury Management Panel (which he attended as an Observer), 
might also benefit from specialised briefing for their Panel duties.    
 

20. ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 OF THE MONITORING OFFICER ON THE 
REVIEW OF ETHICAL GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS AND 
ANCILLARY MATTERS  
 
In presenting the report and Appendix A the Strategic Director (External 
Services) asked Members to acknowledge the significant role played by the 
Head of Legal Services in compiling both documents. 
 
She advised the Board that 90% of the 2018/19 Annual Report (AR) remained 
unchanged from the 2017/18 AR, with the addition of updated statistics for the 
period under review. The number of complaints remained low, reflecting the 
robust complaints frame work the Council had in place.  The SD (ES) in her 
role as Monitoring Officer and the Head of Legal Services as Deputy 
Monitoring Officer employed an ‘open-door’ policy regarding complaints. This 
enabled them to dispense advice and undertake work informally and address 
issues quickly, to prevent them from escalating needlessly. The Committee on 
Standards in Public Life (CSPL) had proposed a review of the ethical 
standards regime [Appendix A para 6 page 98 refers] including a proposal for 
a national Member Code of Conduct. The implications of the CSPL review for 
the Council would be conveyed to Members in due course. 
 
The Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Finance [attending as a Board Member] 
praised the report and Appendix for its clarity. In his role as Chairman of the 
Council’s Deed, Trust and Obligations Committee he had appreciated the 
guidance provided by the report’s author on the recruitment and training of 
Independent Members. He also praised the successful partnership working 
being undertaken with Sevenoaks Council through the joint Revenue & 
Benefits Service which was proving to be a real success for both authorities 
[report para 6.17]. He judged the training received that evening by Board 
Members to be particularly useful, and mooted that Members of the Council’s 
Treasury Management Panel (on which he held Observer status), might 
benefit from similar bespoke training on the complex financial issues the 
Panel was charged with approving [report paras 3.10 and 3.6.6. refer].  
 
  RESOLVED: 
 

Page 4Agenda Item 3



AUDIT BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 23 OCTOBER 2019 
 
 

5 

1. That Members endorse the Monitoring Officer’s Annual Report 2018/19 
on the Review of Ethical Governance Arrangements and ancillary 
matters, as set out in Appendix A to the covering report. 

 
21. COMPLAINTS MONITORING AND PROCEDURE REVIEW - 2018/2019  

 
In the absence of the Head of Legal Services the report and Appendix were 
presented by the SD (ES) as set out. 
 
The Chairman sought confirmation of his continued role as the Council’s 
Designated Person for Housing Complaints, prior to a complaint being 
forwarded to the Housing Ombudsman, given the apparent uncertainty over 
the continuation of the latter role. 
 
The SD (ES) advised that as far as she was aware, the role of Housing 
Ombudsman was to be retained and by extension therefore, the Council 
would also retain the position of Designated Person, presently fulfilled by the 
Chairman of the Audit Board.  
 
It might be the case in the future that the roles of Ombudsman and Housing 
Ombudsman would be combined, but this was not known at this stage. In 
general terms, the Housing Ombudsman took up to six months longer [than 
the Ombudsman] to take action over complaints. It was not known whether 
this was a capacity issue within the Housing Ombudsman’s Office, or whether 
that could form a trigger for the integration of the Ombudsman roles in the 
future. 
 
The Chairman advised that no housing complaints had been forwarded to the 
Housing Ombudsman by him acting as the Council’s Designated Person in 
the period under review, and he commended the work of the Council in 
dealing with housing complaints. 
 
The SD (ES) advised that a referral to the Housing Ombudsman from the 
Council may be in the pipeline. She advised that the Council had ‘mis-
directed’ a complaint to the Ombudsman (rather than the Housing 
Ombudsman) in error, given the overlap in the two roles which even the 
incumbents did not always agree on. The outcome of that referral would be 
advised to Members in due course.  
 
 The Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Finance noted the detailed nature of the 
report and appendices and the feedback it provided for the Board. He 
suggested that for the 2019/20 exercise, the report might also include details 
of individual complaints that had led to a change in Council policy, to add to 
the analysis of complaints received as set out in Appendix A. 
 
  RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the Board note the contents of the report and the information and 
analysis set out in Appendices A and B; 
 

Page 5 Agenda Item 3



AUDIT BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 23 OCTOBER 2019 
 
 

6 

2. That the 2019/2020 annual report include details of any individual 
complaints that had led to a change in Council policy.     

 
22. INTERNAL AUDIT SELF-ASSESSMENT  

 
The report from the Internal Audit Manager (IAM) provided Members with the 
outcomes on the internal audit self-assessment exercise undertaken in 
August 2019 [attached as Appendix A to the report], as set against the Public 
Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). The report also included an update 
on the progress made to date to address the findings from the 2018 self-
assessment, and the 2015 and 2017 external quality assessments.  
 
The IAM highlighted the following principal points for Members: 
 

 The 2019 IA Self-Assessment exercise had been more comprehensive 
and detailed than in previous years and had generated significant work 
to be taken forward with Management and the Audit Partnership, 
including an evaluation of the progress of the IA Service in the 
preceding 5 year period, the updates undertaken in 2017 and 2018 and 
IA Strategy going forward; 

 The role of the Audit Manager (Chief Audit Executive) required to be 
finalised by March 2020 in consultation with Sevenoaks Council; 

 A review of the Audit Partnership Strategy would be presented to the 
Board in April 2020; 

 The recruitment of new posts of Trainee Auditor, and 2 Lead Auditors 
had now been completed. 

 
The Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Finance congratulated the IAM on an 
excellent report and the progress in the Council’s IA function which had taken 
place following his appointment. He asked what further areas now needed to 
be addressed. 
 
The IAM informed Members that the Council’s IA function had progressed well 
in the previous twelve month period, particularly in terms of restructuring and 
recruitment, with the long-term view for the service in mind. However, more 
work was required to enhance the added value of the IA function for the 
Council, in particular a greater concentration on Risk Management, 
governance, and the development of in-house Counter-Fraud and IT skills. 
 
In response to a specific question from the Chairman, the IAM confirmed that 
the IA recruitment process had been team-based, to ensure that the skills 
short-fall of the previous structure was addressed, including the need for 
officers with good people skills to be able to fulfil the IA role of ‘critical friend’ 
to management.  
 
He believed that goal had been achieved with the new appointments, resulting 
in a new well-rounded IA team with all the requisite skills required to perform 
the enhanced IA function going forward. 
 

Page 6Agenda Item 3



AUDIT BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 23 OCTOBER 2019 
 
 

7 

   RESOLVED: 
 

1. That Members note the outcomes of IA self-assessment exercise 
undertaken in August 2019 and the actions identified as set out in 
Appendix A to the report. 

 
23. REPORT FROM THE EXTERNAL AUDITOR  

 
The covering report from the Financial Services Manager (FSM) presented for 
the Board’s approval two documents from the Council’s External Auditors 
Grant Thornton UK: 
 

 An updated Audit Findings report for the Year ended 31 March 2019 
(attached as Appendix A to the report); 

 The 2018/19 Annual Audit Letter (attached as Appendix B to the 
report). 

 
In the absence of representatives from Grant Thornton UK, Members were 
asked to note the documents as read. 
 
The FSM advised that the amendments to the updated Audit Findings report 
[Appendix A] were annotated in italics, and that the Annual Audit Letter 
2018/19 [Appendix B] summarised the updated Audit Findings report. The two 
documents had enabled the Council’s Accounts for 2018/19 to be published 
with an ‘Unqualified’ assessment. 
 
In response to a specific question from the Cabinet Portfolio Holder for 
Finance, the FSM confirmed that the earlier difference of opinion with the 
External Auditor over the Council’s Pension Fund net liability [Appendix A - 
agenda p.63 refers] had been resolved. It had been concluded that there was 
no material increase in risk for the Council from the Court of Appeals ruling 
from December 2018, and that any additional liability for the Council in terms 
of pension provision [arising from changes to the retirement age] would be 
assessed going forward, as part of the tri-annual pension’s valuation exercise. 
 
The Chairman thanked the FSM for these further explanations in the absence 
of the External Auditors. 
 
  RESOLVED: 
 

1. That Members note the updated Audit Findings Report for the Year 
ended 31 March 2019 attached at Appendix A to the report; 
 

2. That Members note the Annual Audit Letter for 2018/19 attached at 
Appendix B to the report. 
 
 

 

Page 7 Agenda Item 3



AUDIT BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 23 OCTOBER 2019 
 
 

8 

24. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE REPORT (OCTOBER 2019)  
 
The report from the Internal Audit Manager (IAM) provided Members with an 
update [attached as Appendix A to the report] on the Audit Partnership, 
including IA activity, service developments and progress made towards 
delivery of the 2019/20 Audit Plan. 
 
Key points emphasised by the IAM in his presentation to Members included: 
 

 The October 2019 update report underlined what had been an 
exceptional year of transformation for the IA service, particularly in the 
last six month period, following the work to restructure the service and 
recruit into new posts; 

 The IA team had comprised of only 2 auditors for the period under 
review [against a complement of 5.8 auditors] as the re-structure 
process had unfolded. A revised Audit Plan would be presented to the 
Board in January 2020 once the IA team had recovered from the back-
log and decided what audits would be moved to 2021[Appendix A 
agenda pages 164 and 165 refer]; 

 Management response to audit actions continued to be positive and 
was detailed on agenda pages 172/173. 

 
The IAM advised Members of a positive change in management responses to 
audit actions. Managers were now responsible for the implementation of audit 
actions which had in turn led to many more positive conversations with the 
IAM and his team. As part of those conversations, managers were advised 
that any failure to implement audit actions could result in individual managers 
appearing before the Audit Board. 
 
He also confirmed that all 3 advertised auditor roles had now been filled, with 
a trainee role due to commence in early November 2019. Filling the vacant 
positions within the IA team would pay dividends in terms of planning the 
Audit Strategy for 2020 and beyond. 
 
The Chairman thanked the IAM for another excellent audit update report. 
 
  RESOLVED: 
 

1. That Members note the contents of the Internal Audit Progress Report 
(October 2019) attached as Appendix A to the report. 

 
25. SELECTIVE INVOICE CHECKS  

 
At the July 2019 meeting of the Board Members selected five creditor 
payments for checking by Internal Audit. The report advised the outcome of 
that exercise, which was that all five creditor payments selected for checking 
had been made appropriately and in compliance with Council procedures. 
 

Page 8Agenda Item 3



AUDIT BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 23 OCTOBER 2019 
 
 

9 

In the absence of a list of transactions for Members to choose a further five 
creditor payments from for checking, it was agreed that the Chairman would 
make the selections subsequently, from a list provided by the IAM. It was also 
agreed that future transactions would be selected using a list of all 
transactions over the quarter, rather than transactions beginning with a 
specified letter of the alphabet. This would result in testing being more current 
and allow greater value in examining only procurement transactions. 
 
  RESOLVED: 
 

1. That Members note the contents of the report; 
 

2. That the Chairman choose five quarterly transactions for checking by 
Internal Audit from a list to be provided by the IAM. 

 
 
 

The meeting closed at 8.12 pm 
 
  

 
 

Councillor D A Hammock 
CHAIRMAN 

Page 9 Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



                

AUDIT BOARD 
22 January 2020 

 
 
REPORT FROM THE EXTERNAL AUDITOR  
 

 
1.      Summary 

 
1.1. The External Auditor has submitted an update report for consideration by 

the Board (Appendix A attached). 
 

1.2 Also included is a letter (Appendix B) from the External Auditor to the Chair 
of the Audit Board. The letter is about understanding how the Audit Board 
gains assurance from management.  

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
2.1. That the update report attached at Appendix A to this report be noted. 
2.2. That the letter from Grant Thornton (Appendix B attached) and the proposed 

action therein, be noted. 
 

 
3. Background and Discussion 

 
 

3.1 The Audit Progress Report and Sector Update document provides the Audit 
Board with a report on the progress of the external auditors in delivering their 
responsibilities for the 2019/20 financial year. The document also includes a 
summary of Sector issues and developments, technical issues and the latest 
Grant Thornton Publications. 
 

3.2 Additionally, Grant Thornton has written a letter, dated 15th January, addressed 
to Councillor Hammock as Audit Board Chairman. The letter is attached as 
Appendix B. The Financial Services Manager is co-ordinating a comprehensive 
response to Grant Thornton. 

 
3.3 A member of the Grant Thornton team will present the progress report to the 

Board.  
 
4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 
 Not applicable 

 
5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 

assessments 
 
 

Financial Implications As per the report 

Legal Implications None 

Staffing Implications None 

Page 11 Agenda Item 7



                 

AUDIT BOARD 
22 January 2020 

 
 

  

Administrative Implications None 

Risk Assessment None 

 
 
6. Appendices 
 

Appendix A – Grant Thornton – Audit Progress Report and Sector Update 
 Appendix B – Letter from Grant Thornton to the Chair of the Audit Board 

 
 
  

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
Documents 
consulted 
 
 

Date File Ref Report  
Author 

Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

   Tim Sams 
343148 

Internal 
Services 
/Financial 
Services 

N/A 

      

 

Page 12Agenda Item 7



Audit Progress Report and Sector Update
Dartford Borough Council

Year ending 31 March 2020

January 2020

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 7



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update for Dartford Borough Council |  2019/2020

Commercial in confidence

Contents

Section Page

Introduction 03

Progress at January 2020 04

Audit Deliverables                                                                                                           05

The Redmond Review 06

Sector Update 13

2

P
age 14

A
genda Item

 7



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update for Dartford Borough Council |  2019/2020

Commercial in confidence

This paper provides the Audit Board with a report on progress in delivering our 
responsibilities as your external auditors. 
The paper also includes a summary of emerging national issues and developments that may be relevant to you as a 
local authority.

Members of the Audit Board Committee can find further useful material on our website, where we have a section 
dedicated to our work in the public sector. Here you can download copies of our publications.

If you would like further information on any items in this briefing, or would like to register with Grant Thornton to 
receive regular email updates on issues that are of interest to you, please contact either your Engagement Lead or 
Engagement Manager./

Introduction

3

Elizabeth Jackson

Engagement Lead

T 020 7728 3329
E Elizabeth.L.Jackson@uk.gt.com

Keyasha Pillay

Engagement Manager

T 020 7728 2494
E keyasha.pillay@uk.gt.com

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 7



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update for Dartford Borough Council |  2019/2020

Commercial in confidence

Progress at January 2020

4

2019/20 Audit
We have begun our planning for the 2019/20 audit in 
November 2019 and will issue a detailed audit plan, 
setting out our proposed approach to the audit of the 
Council's 2019/20 financial statements.

Our interim fieldwork visits are expected to include:

• Updated review of the Council’s control environment

• Updated understanding of financial systems

• Review of Internal Audit reports on core financial 
systems

• Early work on emerging accounting issues

• Early substantive testing

We will report our work in the Audit Findings Report and 
aim to give our opinion on the Statement of Accounts by 
July 2020.

Value for Money
The scope of our work is set out in the guidance issued 
by the National Audit Office. The Code requires auditors 
to satisfy themselves that; "the Council has made proper 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources".

The guidance confirmed the overall criterion as: "in all 
significant respects, the audited body had proper 
arrangements to ensure it took properly informed 
decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned 
and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local 
people".

The three sub criteria for assessment to be able to give a 
conclusion overall are:

•Informed decision making

•Sustainable resource deployment

•Working with partners and other third parties

Details of our initial risk assessment to determine our 
approach will be  included in our Audit Plan. 

We will report our work in the Audit Findings Report and 
aim to give our Value For Money Conclusion by July 
2020.

The NAO is consulting on a new Code of Audit Practice 
from 2020 which proposes to make significant changes 
to Value for Money work. Please see page 9 for more 
details.

Other areas
Certification of claims and returns

We certified the Council’s annual Housing Benefit 
Subsidy claim in accordance with procedures agreed 
with the Department for Work and Pensions in 
November 2019.

Events

We provide a range of workshops, along with network 
events for members and publications to support the 
Council. Our next event is a financial reporting workshop 
to be held in February 2020. Further details of the 
publications that may be of interest to the Council are set 
out in our Sector Update section of this report. 

Meetings

We met with the Strategic Director Internal Services to 
discuss the Council’s strategic prioritise and plans.

We will meet with Finance Officers in February as part of 
our quarterly liaison meetings and continue to be in 
discussions with finance staff regarding emerging 
developments and to ensure the audit process continues 
to be smooth and effective.

P
age 16

A
genda Item

 7



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update for Dartford Borough Council |  2019/2020

Commercial in confidence

Audit Deliverables

5

2018/19 Deliverables Planned Date Status

Audit Findings Report

The Audit Findings Report was reported to the July Audit Board

July 2019 Complete

Auditors Report

This is the opinion on your financial statement, annual governance statement and value for money conclusion.

September 2019 Complete

Annual Audit Letter

This letter communicates the key issues arising from our work.

October 2019 Complete

2019/20 Deliverables Planned Date Status

Fee Letter 

Confirming audit fee for 2019/20.

March 2020 Not yet due

Accounts Audit Plan

We are required to issue a detailed accounts audit plan to the Audit Board setting out our proposed approach in 
order to give an opinion on the Council’s 2019-20 financial statements.

March 2020 Not yet due

Audit Findings Report

The Audit Findings Report will be reported to the July Audit Board.

July 2020 Not yet due

Auditors Report

This is the opinion on your financial statement, annual governance statement and value for money conclusion.

July 2020 Not yet due

Annual Audit Letter

This letter communicates the key issues arising from our work.

August 2020 Not yet due

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 7



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update for Dartford Borough Council |  2019/2020

Commercial in confidence

The Redmond Review 

6

Scope

• Launched on 17 September 2019 and closed in December 2019

• Led by Sir Tony Redmond, former President of CIPFA

Purpose – to assess

• Effectiveness of audit in local authorities 

• Transparency of financial reporting

Call for Evidence

• The Expectations Gap

• Audit and Wider Assurance

• Audit Quality  

• The Financial Reporting framework 

• Auditor Reporting

Report to Secretary of State extended to Summer 2020 

P
age 18

A
genda Item

 7



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update for Dartford Borough Council |  2019/2020

Commercial in confidence

Who audits the auditor?

7

2012 2020

Regulatory / supervisory 
body

Audit Commission FRC/ ICAEW

Number of external 
Inspections per annum

5 15

Public Reporting at audit 
level

No Yes

Potential sanction Recommendation to 
Head of Audit

Fine of individual and 
firm

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 7



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update for Dartford Borough Council |  2019/2020

Commercial in confidence

Change in audits signed over past three 
years

8

Year Target date % opinions signed (all 
firms)

2016/17 30 Sep 95%

2017/18 31 July 80%

2018/19 31 July 58%

P
age 20

A
genda Item

 7



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update for Dartford Borough Council |  2019/2020

Commercial in confidence

Contributory factors to delays in sign off 
(GT 2018/19)

9

Factor %

Poor working papers 18

Authority resource constraints 12

Complex technical issues 46

Audit resource constraints 18

Other 6

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 7



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update for Dartford Borough Council |  2019/2020

Commercial in confidence

Our response to Sir Tony Redmond

Key messages we will be highlighting in our response
Local audit is facing an unprecedented set of challenges
• Accounts have grown far more complex

• Authorities are engaging in more innovative / unusual transactions

• Austerity has reduced the ability of many authorities to prepare high quality accounts and working 
papers

• Audit fees have fallen to an unsustainably low level

• The sign off date of 31 July is too tight

• Retention of key people is very difficult in this environment

• Authorities are not getting the service they deserve

• Radical and urgent reform is needed!

10

P
age 22

A
genda Item

 7



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update for Dartford Borough Council |  2019/2020

Commercial in confidence

Our prescription 

Actions
A ‘system wide’ solution is needed. This should include:
• The establishment of a separate regulator for local audit

• Rebasing of audit fees to a level which reflects the additional work we are now undertaking

• A simplified CIPFA Code/ tiered approach

• A revised approach to Value for Money

• Replacement of the conclusion with a narrative report, at a different time of year

• A focus on governance, financial sustainability and the three ‘E’s

• Move the target publication date for LG accounts back to 30 September 

11

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 7



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

We believe the Redmond review provides a 
once in a generation chance to influence local 

audit and financial reporting for the better. 

12

P
age 24

A
genda Item

 7



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update for Dartford Borough Council |  2019/2020

Commercial in confidence

Councils continue to try to achieve greater 
efficiency in the delivery of public services, whilst 
facing the challenges to address rising demand, 
ongoing budget pressures and social inequality.

Our sector update provides you with an up to date summary of emerging 
national issues and developments to support you. We cover areas which 
may have an impact on your organisation, the wider local government 
sector and the public sector as a whole. Links are provided to the detailed 
report/briefing to allow you to delve further and find out more. 

Our public sector team at Grant Thornton also undertake research on 
service and technical issues. We will bring you the latest research 
publications in this update. We also include areas of potential interest to 
start conversations within the organisation and with audit committee 
members, as well as any accounting and regulatory updates. 

Sector Update

13

More information can be found on our dedicated public sector and local 
government sections on the Grant Thornton website by clicking on the logos 
below:

• Grant Thornton Publications

• Insights from local  government sector 
specialists

• Reports of interest

• Accounting and regulatory updates

Public Sector
Local 

government

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 7



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update for Dartford Borough Council |  2019/2020

Commercial in confidence

What is the future for local audit?
Paul Dossett, Head of local government at Grant Thornton, 
has written in the Municipal Journal “Audit has been a hot 
topic of debate this year and local audit is no exception. With 
a review into the quality of local audit now ongoing, it’s critical 
that part of this work looks at the overarching governance and 
management of the audit regime. We believe there is a strong 
need for new oversight arrangements if the local audit regime 
is to remain sustainable and effective in the future.”
Paul goes on to write “Local (local authority and NHS) audit has been a key part of the 
oversight regime for public services for more than a century. The National Audit Office (NAO) 
has exercised this role in central government for several generations and their reporting to 
Parliament via the Public Accounts Committee is a key part of the public spending 
accountability framework.

Local audit got a significant boost with the creation of the Audit Commission in 1983 which 
provided a coordinated, high profile focus on local government and (from 1990) NHS 
spending and performance at a local level. Through undertaking value for money reviews 
and maintaining a tight focus on the generational governance challenges, such as rate 
capping in the 1980s and service governance failings in the 1990s, the Commission provided 
a robust market management function for the local audit regime. Local audit fees, 
appointments, scope, quality and relevant support for auditors all fell within their ambit.

However, the Commission was ultimately deemed, among other things, to be too expensive 
and was abolished in 2010, as part of the Coalition Government’s austerity saving plans. 
While the regime was not perfect, and the sector had acknowledged that reform of the 
Commission was needed, complete abolition was not the answer.

Since then, there has been no body with complete oversight of the local audit regime and 
how it interacts with local public services. The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 
Government; Department of Health; NHS; NAO; Local Government Association (LGA); 
Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA); the Financial Reporting Council (FRC); the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy (CIPFA), audit firms and the audited 
bodies themselves all have an important role to play but, sometimes, the pursuit of individual 
organisational objectives has resulted in sub-optimal and even conflicting outcomes for the 
regime overall.

These various bodies have pursued separate objectives in areas such as audit fee reduction, 
scope of work, compliance with commercial practice, earlier reporting deadlines and 
mirroring commercial accounting conventions – to name just a few.

This has resulted in a regime that no stakeholder is wholly satisfied with and one that does 
not ensure local audit is providing a sufficiently robust and holistic oversight of public 
spending.

To help provide a more cohesive and co-ordinated approach within the sector, we believe 
that new oversight arrangements should be introduced. These would have ultimate 
responsibility for ensuring the sustainability of the local audit regime and that its component 
parts – including the Audit Code, regulation, market management and fees – interact in an 
optimal way. While these arrangements do not need to be another Audit Commission, we 
need to have a strategic approach to addressing the financial sustainability challenges facing 
local government and the NHS, the benchmarking of performance and the investigation of 
governance failings.

There are a number of possible solutions including:

1) The creation of a new arm’s length agency with a specific remit for overseeing and 
joining up local audit. It would provide a framework to ensure the sustainability of the 
regime, covering fees, appointments, and audit quality. The body would also help to 
create a consistent voice to government and relevant public sector stakeholders on key 
issues arising from the regime. Such a body would need its own governance structure 
drawn from the public sector and wider business community; and

2) Extending the current remit of the NAO. Give it total oversight of the local audit regime 
and, in effect, establish a local audit version of the NAO, with all the attendant powers 
exercised in respect of local audit. In this context, there would be a need to create 
appropriate governance for the various sectors, similar to the Public Accounts 
Committee.

While the detail of the new arrangements would be up for debate, it’s clear that a new type of 
oversight body, with ultimate responsibility for the key elements of local audit, is needed. It 
would help to provide much-needed cohesion across the sector and between its core 
stakeholders.

The online article is available here:

https://www.themj.co.uk/What-is-the-future-for-audit/214769

14

P
age 26

A
genda Item

 7



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update for Dartford Borough Council |  2019/2020

Commercial in confidence

National Audit Office – Code of Audit Practice

The Code of Audit Practice sets out what local auditors of 
relevant local public bodies are required to do to fulfil their 
statutory responsibilities under the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014. ‘Relevant authorities’ are set out in 
Schedule 2 of the Act and include local councils, fire 
authorities, police and NHS bodies.  

Local auditors must comply with the Code of Audit Practice.

Consultation – New Code of Audit Practice from 2020
Schedule 6 of the Act requires that the Code be reviewed, and revisions considered at least 
every five years. The current Code came into force on 1 April 2015, and the maximum five-
year lifespan of the Code means it now needs to be reviewed and a new Code laid in 
Parliament in time for it to come in to force no later than 1 April 2020.

In order to determine what changes might be appropriate, the NAO is consulting on potential 
changes to the Code in two stages:

Stage 1 involves engagement with key stakeholders and public consultation on the issues that 
are considered to be relevant to the development of the Code.

This stage of the consultation is now closed. The NAO received a total of 41 responses to the 
consultation which included positive feedback on the two-stage approach to developing the 
Code that has been adopted. The NAO state that they have considered carefully the views of 
respondents in respect of the points drawn out from the Issues paper and this will inform the 
development of the draft Code. A summary of the responses received to the questions set 
out in the Issues paper can be found below. 

Local audit in England Code of Audit Practice – Consultation Response (pdf – 256KB)

Stage 2 of the consultation involves consulting on the draft text of the new Code. To support 
stage 2, the NAO has published a consultation document, which highlights the key changes 
to each chapter of the draft Code. The most significant changes are in relation to the Value 
for Money arrangements. Rather than require auditors to focus on delivering an overall, 
binary, conclusion about whether or not proper arrangements were in place during the 
previous financial year, the draft Code requires auditors to issue a commentary on each of 
the criteria. This will allow auditors to tailor their commentaries to local circumstances. The 
Code proposes three specific criteria:

a) Financial sustainability: how the body plans and manages its resources to ensure it can 
continue to deliver its services;

b) Governance: how the body ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly 
manages its risks; and

c) Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness: how the body uses information about 
its costs and performance to improve the way it manages and delivers its services.

The consultation document and a copy of the draft Code can be found on the NAO website. 
The consultation closed on 22 November 2019. The new Code will apply from audits of local 
bodies’ 2020-21 financial statements onwards.

Link to NAO webpage for the Code consultation:

https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/code-of-audit-practice-consultation/

15

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 7



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update for Dartford Borough Council |  2019/2020

Commercial in confidence

Financial Reporting Council – Summary of key 
developments for 2019/20 annual reports
On 30 October the Financial Reporting Council (FRC) wrote 
an Open Letter to Company Audit Committee Chairs. Some 
of the points are relevant to local authorities.

The reporting environment
The FRC notes that, “In times of uncertainty, whether created by political events, general 
economic conditions or operational challenges, investors look for greater transparency in 
corporate reports to inform their decision-making. We expect companies to consider carefully 
the detail provided in those areas of their reports which are exposed to heightened levels of 
risk; for example, descriptions of how they have approached going concern considerations, 
the impact of Brexit and all areas of material estimation uncertainty.” These issues equally 
affect local authorities, and the Statement of Accounts or Annual Report should provide 
readers with sufficient appropriate information on these topics.

Critical judgements and estimates
The FRC wrote “More companies this year made a clear distinction between the critical 
judgements they make in preparing their accounts from those that involve the making of 
estimates and which lead to different disclosure requirements. However, some provided 
insufficient disclosures to explain this area of their reporting where a particular judgement 
had significant impact on their reporting; for example, whether a specific investment was a 
joint venture or a subsidiary requiring consolidation. We will continue to have a key focus on 
the adequacy of disclosures supporting transparent reporting of estimation uncertainties. An 
understanding of their sensitivity to changing assumptions is of critical value to investors, 
giving them clearer insight into the possible future changes in balance sheet values and 
which can inform their investment decisions.” Critical judgements and estimates also form a 
crucial part of local authority statements of account, with the distinction often blurred.

IFRS 16 Leases
The FRC letter notes “IFRS 16 is effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. 
We recently conducted a thematic review looking at how companies reported on their 
adoption of the new standard in their June 2019 interim accounts. In advance of our detailed 
findings which will be published shortly, I set out what we expect to see by way of 
disclosures in the forthcoming accounts, drawing on the results of our work.

• Clear explanation of the key judgements made in response to the new reporting 
requirements;

• Effective communication of the impact on profit and loss, addressing any lack of 
comparability with the prior year;

• Clear identification of practical expedients used on transition and accounting policy choices; 
and

• Well explained reconciliation, where necessary, of operating lease commitments under IAS 
17, ‘Leases’, the previous standard and lease liabilities under IFRS 16.”

The implementation of IFRS is delayed until 1 April 2020 in the public sector when it will 
replace IAS 17 Leases and the three interpretations that supported its application. 
Authorities will need information and processes in place to enable them to comply with the 
requirements. They will need to make disclosures in the 2019/20 accounts about the impact 
of IFRS 16 in accordance with IAS 8/ Code 3.3.4.3 requirements for disclosure about 
standards which are issued but are not yet effective.

16

P
age 28

A
genda Item

 7



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update for Dartford Borough Council |  2019/2020

Commercial in confidence

Grant Thornton’s Sustainable Growth Index 
Report
Grant Thornton has launched the Sustainable Growth Index 
(formerly the Vibrant Economy Index) – now in its third year.  
The Sustainable Growth Index seeks to define and measure 
the components that create successful places. Our aim in 
establishing the Index was to create a tool to help frame 
future discussions between all interested parties, stimulate 
action and drive change locally. We have undergone a 
process of updating the data for English Local Authorities on 
our online, interactive tool, and have produced an updated 
report on what the data means.  All information is available 
our on our online hub, where you can read the new report and 
our regional analyses. 
The Sustainable Growth Index provides an independent, data-led scorecard for each local 
area that provides:

• businesses with a framework to understand their local economy and the issues that will 
affect investment decisions both within the business and externally, a tool to support their 
work with local enterprise partnerships, as well as help inform their strategic purpose and 
CSR plans in light of their impact on the local social and economic environment

• policy-makers and place-shapers with an overview of the strengths, opportunities and 
challenges of individual places as well as the dynamic between different areas

• Citizens with an accessible insight into how their place is doing, so that they can contribute 
to shaping local discussions about what is important to them

The Index shows the 'tip of the iceberg' of data sets and analysis our public services 
advisory team can provide our private sector clients who are considering future locations in 
the UK, or wanting to understand the external drivers behind why some locations perform 
better than others. 

Our study looks at over 50 indicators to evaluate all the facets of a place and where they 
excel or need to improve.

Our index is divided into six baskets. These are:

1 Prosperity

2 Dynamism and opportunity

3 Inclusion and equality

4 Health, wellbeing and happiness

5 Resilience and sustainability

6 Community trust and belonging

This year’s index confirms that cities have a consistent
imbalance between high scores related to prosperity, 

dynamism and opportunity, and low scores for health, 
wellbeing, happiness inclusion and equality. Disparity 
between the richest and poorest in these areas 
represents a considerable challenge for those places.

Inclusion and equality remains a challenge for both highly urban and highly rural places and 
coastal areas, particularly along the east coast from the North East to Essex and Kent, face 
the most significant challenges in relation to these measures and generally rank below 
average.

Creating sustainable growth matters and to achieve this national policy makers and local 
authorities need to do seven things:

1 Ensure that decisions are made on the basis of robust local evidence.

2 Focus on the transformational trends as well as the local enablers

3 Align investment decisions to support the creation of sustainable growth

4 Align new funding to support the creation of sustainable growth

5 Provide space for innovation and new approaches

6 Focus on place over organisation

7 Take a longer-term view

The online report is available here:

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/sustainable-growth-index-how-does-your-place-
score/

17

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 7



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update for Dartford Borough Council |  2019/2020

Commercial in confidence

Institute for Fiscal Studies – English local 
government funding: trends and challenges in 
2019 and beyond
The Institute for Fiscal Studies (IFS) has found “The 2010s 
have been a decade of major financial change for English 
local government. Not only have funding levels – and hence 
what councils can spend on local services – fallen 
significantly; major reforms to the funding system have seen 
an increasing emphasis on using funding to provide financial 
incentives for development via initiatives such as the 
Business Rates Retention Scheme (BRRS) and the New 
Homes Bonus (NHB).”
The IFS goes on to report “Looking ahead, increases in council tax and additional grant 
funding from central government mean a boost to funding next year – but what about the 
longer term, especially given plans for further changes to the funding system, including an 
expansion of the BRRS in 2021–22?

This report, the first of what we hope will be an annual series of reports providing an up-to-
date analysis of local government, does three things in this context. First, it looks in detail at 
councils’ revenues and spending, focusing on the trends and choices taken over the last 
decade. Second, it looks at the outlook for local government funding both in the short and 
longer term. And third, it looks at the impact of the BRRS and NHB on different councils’ 
funding so far, to see whether there are lessons to guide reforms to these policies.

The report focuses on those revenue sources and spending areas over which county, district 
and single-tier councils exercise real control. We therefore exclude spending on police, fire 
and rescue, national park and education services and the revenues specifically for these 
services. When looking at trends over time, we also exclude spending on and revenues 
specifically for public health, and make some adjustments to social care spending to make 
figures more comparable across years. Public health was only devolved to councils in 2013–
14, and the way social care spending is organised has also changed, with councils receiving 
a growing pot of money from the NHS to help fund services.”

The IFS reports a number of key facts and figures, including

1) Cuts to funding from central government have led to a 17% fall in councils’ spending on 
local public services since 2009–10 – equal to 23% or nearly £300 per person.

2) Local government has become increasingly reliant on local taxes for revenues.

3) Councils’ spending is increasingly focused on social care services – now 57% of all 
service budgets.

The IFS report is available on their website below:

https://www.ifs.org.uk/publications/14563

18

P
age 30

A
genda Item

 7



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms, 
as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL).GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each 
member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not 
obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. This proposal is made by Grant Thornton UK LLP and is in all respects subject to the negotiation, agreement 
and signing of a specific contract/letter of engagement. The client names quoted within this proposal are disclosed on a confidential basis. All information in this proposal is released strictly 
for the purpose of this process and must not be disclosed to any other parties without express consent from Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 7



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 32



 

 
 

Chartered Accountants 

Member firm within Grant Thornton International Ltd 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London EC2P 2YU 

A list of members is available from our registered office. 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Services Authority for investment business. 

Commercial in confidence 

 
 

 

David A Hammock, Head of Audit Board 
Dartford Borough Council, 
Civic Centre, 
Home Gardens, 
Dartford 
Kent 
DA1 1DR 
 

15th January 2020 

Dear David,  
 

Dartford Borough Council Financial Statements for the year end 31 March 

2020 - Understanding how the Audit Board gains assurance from 

management 

 
To comply with International Auditing Standards, we need to establish an understanding of 
how the Audit Board gains assurance over management processes and arrangements. 
 
I would be grateful, therefore, if you could write to me in your role as Chair of the Audit 
Board with your responses to the following questions in respect of the Trust's financial 
statements. 

1 How does the Audit Board oversee management's processes in relation to: 

 carrying out an assessment of the risk the financial statements may be materially 
misstated due to fraud or error 

 identifying and responding to the risk of breaches of internal control 

 identifying and responding to risks of fraud in the organisation (including any specific 
risks of fraud which management have identified or that have been brought to its 
attention, or classes of transactions, account balances, or disclosure for which a risk of 
fraud is likely to exist) 

 communicating to employees its views on appropriate business practice and ethical 
behavior (for example by updating, communicating and monitoring against the codes of 
conduct)? 

2 Do you have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged frauds? If so, please provide 
details.   

3 How does the Audit Board gain assurance that all relevant laws and regulations have been 
complied with?  

4 Are you aware of any actual or potential litigation or claims that would affect the financial 
statements? 

Grant Thornton UK LLP 
110 Bishopsgate 
London 
EC2N 4AY 
 

T +44 (0)20 7383 5100 
F +44 (0)20 7383 4715 
www.grant-thornton.co.uk 

 
 

Page 33 Agenda Item 7



 

 2 

Commercial in confidence 

I have attached a separate schedule which explores these areas in more detail, included as an 
Appendix to this letter. Could you please complete this schedule and return it to me at your 
earliest convenience. 
 
If you have any questions please do not hesitate to contact me via email: 
ezgi.aslan@uk.gt.com. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
Ezgi Aslan 
Associate 
 
For Grant Thornton UK LLP 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 34Agenda Item 7

mailto:ezgi.aslan@uk.gt.com


 

 3 

Commercial in confidence 

Appendix 

Response from Audit Board Chair 

Fraud risk assessment 

Auditor Question Response 

Has the Trust assessed the risk of material 
misstatement in the financial statements due to fraud? 

 

What are the results of this process?  

What processes does the Trust have in place to 
identify and respond to risks of fraud? 

 

Have any specific fraud risks, or areas with a high risk 
of fraud, been identified and what has been done to 
mitigate these risks? 

 

Are internal controls, including segregation of duties, 
in place and operating effectively? 

 

If not, where are the risk areas and what mitigating 
actions have been taken? 

 

Are there any areas where there is a potential for 
override of controls or inappropriate influence over 
the financial reporting process (for example because of 
undue pressure to achieve financial targets)?  

 

Are there any areas where there is a potential for 
misreporting? 

 

How does the Audit Board exercise oversight over 
management's processes for identifying and 
responding to risks of fraud? 

 

What arrangements are in place to report fraud issues 
and risks to the Audit Board? 

 

How does the Trust communicate and encourage 
ethical behaviour of its staff and contractors? 

 

How do you encourage staff to report their concerns 
about fraud?  
Have any significant issues been reported? 

 

Are you aware of any related party relationships or 
transactions that could give rise to risks of fraud? 

 

Are you aware of any instances of actual, suspected or 
alleged, fraud, either within the Trust as a whole or 
within specific departments since 1 April 2019? 

 

 
 
 

Laws and regulations 

Auditor Question Response 

What arrangements does the Trust have in place to 
prevent and detect non-compliance with laws and 
regulations? 

 

Page 35 Agenda Item 7



 

 4 

Commercial in confidence 

How does management gain assurance that all 
relevant laws and regulations have been complied 
with? 

 

How is the Audit Board provided with assurance that 
all relevant laws and regulations have been complied 
with? 

 

Have there been any instances of non-compliance or 
suspected non-compliance with law and regulation 
since 1 April 2019? 

 

What arrangements does the Trust have in place to 
identify, evaluate and account for litigation or claims? 

 

Is there any actual or potential litigation or claims that 
would affect the financial statements? 

 

Have there been any reports from other regulatory 
bodies, such as HM Revenues and Customs, which 
indicate non-compliance? 

 

 

 

Page 36Agenda Item 7



 
AUDIT BOARD 

22 JANUARY 2020 
 
INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE REPORT (January 2020) 
 

1. Summary 
 
1.1. The report provides Members of the Audit Board with an update on the Audit 

Partnership, including Internal Audit activity, service developments and 
progress towards delivery of the 2019/20 Audit Plan. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 That Members note the Internal Audit Progress Report and updates (attached 

as Appendix A to the report). 
 
2.2 That Members agree the projects for Q1 of 2020/21 (Appendix A to the report).  

 
 

 
3. Background and Discussion 
 

Reporting the outcomes of the internal audit service is a requirement 
under the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (the Standards). As 
those charged with governance, the Audit Board is required through its 
Terms of Reference to provide oversight of the internal audit service. 

The Audit Board receives regular updates from the Internal Audit 
partnership. Principally the focus on these updates is around the 
progress made to deliver the Audit Plan, but also to track progress of 
audit actions, and to consider key insights from internal audit activities.  

Following work over the year to review, update and restructure the 
service, the impact of the disruption has been reviewed and the Audit 
Plan has been re-assessed. As a result, the report (Appendix A) 
includes a proposal to re-schedule some projects into Q1 of 2020/21. 
Doing this creates a greater degree of stability and momentum for the 
service, and reduces the impact of short-term disruption on delivery of 
the Plan. 

4. Internal Audit Resources  

4.1 The report (Appendix A) provides an update on how the Internal Audit 
resources have been deployed to date (October to November 2019). 
This follows from an exercise to identify capacity within the new structure 
and to align that capacity with the remaining days needed to deliver the 
Plan.  

5. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 

5.1 Not applicable 
 
 
 

Page 37 Agenda Item 8



 
AUDIT BOARD 

22 JANUARY 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments 
 

Financial Implications The Internal Audit Partnership is responsible for 
the delivery of the audit service. Delivery of the 
Audit Plan is already approved within the 
Council’s budget and so needs no new funding. 

Legal Implications 
There are no direct legal implications associated 
with this decision.  

Staffing Implications Use of Internal Audit resources are set out in 
the report (Appendix A).  

Administrative 
Implications 

There are no direct administrative implications 
associated with this decision.  

Risk Assessment 
The Audit Plan is risk-based. As such, the 
projects outlined in the Plan have been 
prioritised, based on the outcomes of each risk 
assessment.  

 
7. Details of Exempt Information Category 

 
7.1 Not applicable 
 

8. Appendices 
 

Appendix A – Internal Audit Update Report (January 2020) 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents consulted Date Report Author 
Section & 

Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

 

Previous Audit Board reports 
as published on the Council 
website.  
 
Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (March 2017) 
 

23/10/19 
 
 

Audit Manager 
01322 343004 

Internal Audit 
Partnership 
 
& 
 
Strategic Director 
(Internal Services) 
 

N/A 

 

Page 38Agenda Item 8



 

 

 

Internal Audit Update 

Report 

 
January 2020 

 

 

 

 

Page 39 Agenda Item 8



 
 

Introduction 

All local authorities must make proper provision for internal audit in line with the Local Audit 

and Accountability Act 2014 and the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 (regulation 

5). The latter requires authorities to:  

“…undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk 

management, control and governance processes, taking into account public sector internal 

auditing standards or guidance.” 

The Regulations state that services must follow the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards - a 

consolidated approach to internal auditing standards across the whole of public sector. They are an 

expansion of international standards by HM Government, adding elements specific to the UK public 

Sector. The ‘Standards’ form part of the wider mandatory elements of the International 

Professional Practices Framework (IPPF) which is applicable to all UK Local Authorities: 

 

These ‘Standards’ mandate the mission of internal audit: to enhance and protect organisational 

value by providing risk-based and objective assurance, advice and insight. We achieve this by 

bringing a systematic and disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk 

management, control and governance for the Council. 

The Standards require that the Chief Audit Executive (the Audit Manager fulfils this role for the 

Council) issues an annual opinion.  The Opinion considers internal control, corporate governance 

and risk management. It is a key part of the overall assurance, Members and Officers of the Council 

draw on when evaluating governance. The Opinion for 2018/19 was reported to Audit Board in July 

2019.  

This report provides Members with an update on Internal Audit activity, in addition, to setting out 

current progress as we complete our 2019/20 Audit Plan approved by the Audit Board in March 

2019.   

Page 40Agenda Item 8

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/2/contents/enacted
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/2/contents/enacted
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/234/pdfs/uksi_20150234_en.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/641252/PSAIS_1_April_2017.pdf
http://committeedmz.dartford.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=286&MId=2819&Ver=4
http://committeedmz.dartford.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=286&MId=2819&Ver=4
http://committeedmz.dartford.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=286&MId=2741&Ver=4
http://committeedmz.dartford.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=286&MId=2741&Ver=4


 
 

Internal Control 

Internal control is how the Council ensures achievement of its objectives. In particular, internal 

control achieves and displays effectiveness and efficiency, reliable financial reporting and 

compliance with law, rules and policies.  It incorporates both financial and non-financial aspects. 

We gather evidence to support this part of the Opinion principally through completing the reviews 

set out in our audit plan.  As we deliver this work we assess and conclude on the overall level of 

assurance offered by the controls in accordance with the agreed definitions (see appendix I). 

Audit Plan Progress 

The Audit Partnership is governed by the principle that resources are split 50/50 across both 

Partners. Therefore, to calculate the total amount of resources available to each Partner, we take 

the total available days for the year, and subtract various categories of non-working and non-audit 

time. The remaining total is spilt 50/50 to give us a total number of days for the Audit Plan.  

The Audit Board approved our Audit Plan 2019/20 in March 2019.  The total chargeable days (850) 

are split 50/50 for Sevenoaks and Dartford creating a plan for Dartford of 425 days. We ensure 

flexibility in how these days are deployed by allocating days to different activities, most of which 

are planned, but with some available for reactive ad-hoc work.  

The table below shows the total allocation of 425 audit days for Dartford, and shows how those 

days have been deployed to date: 

Audit Activity 

Dartford 

Total Days  
19/20 

Q3 Days 
(Oct-Dec) 

Year to 
Date 

Chargeable 
work outside of 
audit projects 

Risk Management 10 - 1 

Counter Fraud 5  - 0.5 

Member 
Support/Training/Meetings 

10 3.5 11.5 

Follow-Up 15 3.5 8.5 

Audit Planning 10 2 5 

Advisory & Consultancy 50 7 31 

Chargeable 
audit projects 

Audit Project Days 19/20 325 25 42 

Total Days 425 41 99.5 

Audit Project Days 18/19 - 1 61 

Over the quarter the Partnership continued to operate with 2 auditors. The days deployed 

therefore are lower than our original assumptions. It does however, show that the team are 

working almost exclusively on 19/20 audit work. The table also includes the year to date position, 

showing that we have used 99.5 days (23%) of the annual 425 days, in addition to a further 61 days 

on completing the projects rolled forward. Combined, this equates to a total of 160.5 deployed 

days (38%).   

Page 41 Agenda Item 8



 
 

The total available days for the partnership also takes into account non-chargeable days. Non-

chargeable activities include administration, general management and the ongoing professional 

development of the team. In order to provide some additional context for the time deployed so far 

for 2019/20 the graph below shows our chargeable and non-chargeable totals for the period 

October to November:   

 

Two new members of the team joined us in November, the Trainee Auditor and one of the Lead 

Auditors. We therefore designed and have delivered an induction and support programme in order 

to aid their integration into the team. This investment of time was important, and involved the 

whole team, however, as you can see above, it has utilised a significant number of our available 

days for the month.  

Since our last update we have attended some professional conferences, which has resulted in an 

increase in ‘training’ days. There has also been a reduction in admin days since our last update.  

 

31

19

12

40

16

25

1

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

Administration Training &
Develoment

Personnel
Management

Induction of
new staff

Chargeable
Work (non-

audit projects)

Audit Projects
19/20

Audit Projects
18/19

Audit Resources Deployed in Days (October - December)

Page 42Agenda Item 8



Audit Scheduling 2019/20 

Following successful recruitment and appointment into our new structure, we have undertaken a full review of the available resources for the remainder of the year. The schedule below sets out our planned work 

for the next few months, up to March 2020. This combined schedule shows our planned audit work across the Partnership (Dartford, Sevenoaks + Shared Services).  

The schedule also includes a breakdown of the stages of the audit process, from planning, conducting the fieldwork and reporting our findings. We have reviewed the plan against our planning risk assessments and 

are satisfied that the projects are suitably prioritised. In addition, we have consulted with the relevant Managers to ensure that they are aware of the forthcoming work, and proposed schedule. We will continue to 

report progress against the schedule to Members as part of our regular reporting, including our conclusions and the details of any findings that we make following issue of the final report: 

 

            Quarter 4 (2019/20) 

Site Ref Title Q Month 
Dec 2019 Jan 2020 Feb 2020 Mar 2020 

02 09 16 23 30 06 13 20 27 03 10 17 24 02 09 16 23 30 

Sevenoaks SDC04-19-20 Pay & Display Income Q3 November 19                                     

Sevenoaks SDC05-19-20 Accounts Payable (Systems Mapping) Q3 November 19                                     

Dartford DBC08-19-20 Corporate Complaints Q3 December 19                                     

Sevenoaks SDC08-19-20 Corporate Complaints Q3 December 19                                     

Dartford DBC01-19-20 Income System (AIM) Q3 December 19                                     

Dartford DBC03-19-20 Accounts Receivable (Debtors) Q3 December 19                                     

Sevenoaks SDC24-19-20 HR Policy Compliance Q3 December 19                                     

Dartford DBC20-19-20 Garage Management Q4 January 20                                     

Dartford DBC19-19-20 Housing Allocations Policy Q4 January 20                                     

Dartford DBC25-19-20 Development Management - Enforcement Q4 January 20                                     

Dartford DBC04-19-20 Housing Rent Accounting (Systems) Q4 January 20                                     

Dartford DBC23-19-20 HR Policy Compliance Q4 February 20                                     

Sevenoaks SDC17-19-20 Grounds Maintenance Q4 February 20                                     

Sevenoaks SDC12-19-20 Corporate Governance Code Q4 February 20                                     

Sevenoaks SDC23-19-20 Domestic Waste & Recycling Q4 February 20                                     

Dartford DBC13-19-20 Corporate Governance Code Q4 February 20                                     

Dartford TBC Cyber Security Q4 February 20                                     

Sevenoaks SDC18-19-20 Private Sector Housing - Enforcement Q4 March 20                                     

Sevenoaks SDC15-19-20 Development Management - Enforcement Q4 March 20                                     

Shared Service 
DBC16-SDC13-19-

20 
Animal Welfare - Control Q4 March 20 

                                    

Dartford DBC14-19-20 Community Safety Partnership Q4 March 20                                     

Sevenoaks TBC Cyber Security Q4 March 20                                     

Key 

  Reporting    Out of office 

  Fieldwork 

  Planning 
 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 8



 
 

Audit Plan: 2020/21 

In March 2019 Audit Board approved the audit plan for the year. At that time, and knowing that we would be implementing a new structure, which included recruiting into 3 newly defined posts, we built 100 days 

into the plan as a vacancy factor. Throughout the year we have reported progress with the restructure alongside delivery of the agreed plan. As part of our last update in October we recognised that there would be 

a need to review the plan and re-map the remaining projects on the plan with the total available days within the new structure.  

In order to create a degree of stability and greater momentum for the coming year, the schedule below (which are projects identified as part of the agreed audit plan in March 2019) sets out those projects that will 

be planned and delivered in Q1 of 20/21. Audit Board are required to agree this schedule as part of the 20/21 audit plan. The Board will receive the annual plan in April 2020, which will include an updated risk 

assessment and audit universe, and will cover Q2 – Q4 of 2020/21.  

We have consulted with Managers and project sponsors to ensure that they are aware of the forthcoming work, and proposed schedule. 

  
          Quarter 1 (2020/21) 

Site Ref Title Q Month 
Apr 2020 May 2020 June 2020 

06 13 20 27 04 11 18 25 01 08 15 22 29 

Dartford DBC24-19-20 Legal Services - Case Management Q1 April 20                           

Sevenoaks SDC20-19-20 Community Safety Partnership Q1 April 20                           

Sevenoaks SDC14-19-20 Housing Allocations Policy Q1 April 20                           

Shared Service SDC02-DBC06-19-20 Housing Benefits (Systems Mapping) Q1 May 20                           

Sevenoaks SDC22-19-20 Purchasing & Stock Management (Dunbrik) Q1 May 20                           

Shared Service DBC17-SDC19-19-20 Local Air Quality Management Q1 May 20                           

Dartford DBC18-19-20 Contract Management Q1 May 20                           

Dartford DBC05-19-20 New Build Capital Programme Q1 May 20                           

Dartford DBC02-19-20 Feeder Systems & Journals Q1 May 20                           

Sevenoaks SDC03-19-20 Budgetary Control & Monitoring Q1 May 20                           

Sevenoaks SDC07-19-20 Scheme of Delegations & Decision Making Q1 June 20                           

Sevenoaks SDC21-19-20 Fleet Management Q1 June 20                           

Sevenoaks SDC06-19-20 Contract Procedure Rules Q1 June 20                           

Dartford DBC15-19-20 Dartford Town Against Crime (DTAC) Q1 June 20                           

Projects removed from the plan  

The following projects will be moved off the 2019/20 audit plan, and will be incorporated into the 2020/21 risk-based audit plan:  

Site Title Rationale 

Sevenoaks Corporate Project Governance - Programme Governance 
The council is in the process of reviewing and updating the Terms of Reference and 
purpose of the Project Steering Group. This review may include a greater emphasis on 
project governance. Audit currently sit on the group in an advisory capacity.   

Dartford 
Corporate Project Governance / Dartford Town Centre - 
Transport & Public Realm Project 

This review will be moved into 20/21 to coincide with the later phases of the project, in 
order to enable the review to include lessons learned from other Corporate Projects.  

Dartford Strategic Asset Management 
This review will be re-scheduled once the Council has agreed and formalised the Asset 
Management Strategy.  

Shared Service Application of Discretionary Powers 
This review represented less risk when compared to the other review in the plan for this 
service area – Housing Benefits. 

Sevenoaks Capital Programme - Monitoring 
Timing of this review was dependant on completion of other work in this area, mainly 
budget control and monitoring (which is scheduled for Q1 20/21).  

P
age 44

A
genda Item

 8



Audit Work Issued Q3 

Since our last report to Board the following projects have been finalised: 

Ref Title Date Issued Conclusion 

2018/19 Homelessness Reduction Act  October 19 Not Rated 

2018/19 Fleet Vehicle Management  October 19  Substantial 

2018/19 Building Control October 19 Substantial 

2019/20 Corporate Complaints In progress Draft report 

2019/20 Income System (AIM) In progress Feedback 

2019/20 Accounts Receivable (Debtors) In progress Fieldwork 

2019/20 Garage Management In progress Planning 

    

Summaries  

We include below the executive summaries of the reports issued in final since our last update 

report in October. Where relevant, we have included the details on any findings of a MEDIUM level 

risk or higher. 

Homelessness Reduction Act – Issued in October 2019 

This review was not assurance rated, and was conducted as a cross authority risk review. We 
undertook workshops with Managers from Dartford and Sevenoaks to identify the risks associated 
with the implementation of the Act. We then tested the effectiveness of the Council’s response to 
each risk.   

Based on the results of the review, it is clear to see that both Councils have responded in different 
ways to the same challenges. Both have taken full advantage of funding options to increase 
resource, expertise and resilience, however, the uncertainty of any long-term funding means that 
permanent solutions are difficult to implement.  
 
Closer working with colleagues across the County could help to provide greater development and 
insight. Our initial workshop for instance enabled the Managers from both Councils to compare and 
contrast approaches and to explore possible sharing of best practice.  
 
While the challenges around Homelessness remain high on the risk agenda for all Local Authorities, 

Dartford and Sevenoaks appear to be responding effectively to ongoing demands and challenges.  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 45 Agenda Item 8



 
 

Fleet Vehicle Management – Issued in October 2019 

We concluded based on our audit work that the controls in place over the management of the 

Council’s vehicle fleet provide SUBSTANTIAL assurance.   

The Council has 26 vehicles in the ‘fleet’ including the mayoral car, vans, and mobile plant including 
trailers and tractors. These vehicles are owned, insured, maintained and operated by Council 
officers in order to enable key services to be delivered.  
 
 
The main services to use these vehicles are: 

 Enforcement and Regulatory Services  

 Waste and Parks  

 Leisure & Community Services (which is part of Policy & Corporate Support)  

 Environmental Services  
While there is limited financial value on the fleet, there is a requirement for the vehicles to be 
maintained legally, and operated safely while in use. It is therefore important that the fleet is 
managed effectively and that the associated risks are being managed.  
 
We raised 3 actions in this review, with the following priority ratings:   

Priority Ranking Number of actions 

Medium 2 

Low 1 

Total 3 

 

1. Sharing good practice: standardising procedures 
Medium  
Priority 

Finding: The operational management of the fleet is managed by each service, and they 
have all adopted different procedures for managing and controlling vehicles. Our testing 
found that the procedures operated by the Community Safety Unit provided a greater level 
of control. Good practice identified included:  

 Documented checks on vehicles for damage (including inspections of fluid levels and 
tyres);  

 Checking of eligibility to use vehicles - driving licenses; and  

 Clear conditions / consent on how to operate the vehicle safely and legally  
 
Action: Standardise the procedures for managing and operating fleet vehicles  
 

Management Response 

Agreed 
 
Comments: Work will be undertaken to standardise procedures for the fleet vehicles. 

 

 

Page 46Agenda Item 8



 
 

2. Servicing & MOT of Fleet Vehicles 
Medium  
Priority 

Finding: Our testing confirmed that all vehicles hold a valid MOT and undergo regular 
servicing. However, as the management of fleet vehicles is devolved to relevant service 
areas, we found that various different garages are used throughout the year to undertake 
servicing and MOT work. 
 
Action: Undertake an exercise to determine the viability, benefits and costs associated with 
having a single maintenance contract for fleet vehicles 

Management Response 

Agreed 
 
Comments: Work has already begun to establish the viability of having a single maintenance 
contract for the fleet vehicles. 

 

Building Control – Issued in October 2019 

We concluded based on our audit work that the controls in place over the administration and 

income for Building Control Fees provide a SUBSTANTIAL level of assurance (we include the 

definitions of our assurance ratings at Appendix A). 

 

The Building Control Service provides for the checking of new building works within the Borough to 

ensure that they meet the standards of the Building Regulations 2010. The service monitors 

compliance and has a responsibility to the public, for the following: 

 

 The enforcement of Building regulations and related legislation; 

 The control of demolition work; 

 The Control of defective premises and control of dangerous structures. 

 

The Council sets building control fees which are payable for applicable building work and processes 

and collects annual fee income in the region of £280k each year. Due to the complex and technical 

nature of the service, we scoped this audit to look specifically at the administration processes and 

the management of fee income only. 

 

Our testing confirms that Building Control applications are processed in accordance with agreed 

procedures and guidance. We found no errors in the system, and all applications were supported 

by the necessary and relevant evidence. All of the fees tested, were charged in accordance with our 

published scheme. 

 

However, in undertaking our testing of the financial controls we identified two issues. Firstly, there 

is currently no reconciliation between the Building Control system (Uniform) and the Council’s 

Financial Management System (Cedar). Our individual transaction testing did not identify any 

errors, but our sample was only a small percentage of the total number transactions for the year. 

Page 47 Agenda Item 8



 
 

As such, a full reconciliation would give additional assurance that fees charged and income 

received are balanced. Secondly, the Council has not prepared or published an end of year financial 

statement as required by the Charges Regulations 2010. This published statement details the 

annual chargeable and non-chargeable activities of the Building Control service for the financial 

year.  

 

We raised 3 actions in this review, with the following priority ratings:   

Priority Ranking Number of actions 

Medium 1 

Low 1 

Advisory 1 

Total 3 

 

 

1 Automatic Deletion of Data 
Medium  
Priority 

Finding: An annual Statement of Building Control Income and Expenditure is not prepared 

by Financial Services or the Building Control Manager as required by the Charges 

Regulations 2010. 

Action: Produce and publish an Annual Financial Statement for Building Control, in 
accordance with the Charges Regulations 2010. 

Management Response 

Agreed 
 
Comments: The information is produced but currently is not published 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 48Agenda Item 8



 
 

Audit Findings 

Upon completion of our work, if we identify any issues, we will raise actions to assist management 

in addressing control failings, or to suggest service improvements. Action taken as a result of our 

audit work is extremely important to capture and track and it is a measurable way for us to 

measure and quantify the value added by the audit process. The illustration below summarises the 

follow-up process adopted, up to and including escalation to Members via the Audit Board:  

 

Page 49 Agenda Item 8



 
 

Audit actions  

In accordance with our new follow-up process (outlined above) we track and follow-up all actions when they fall due. Following 

implementation of this process, we have also designed and incorporated a quarterly follow-up summary report that is issued to Strategic 

Management Team. We issued the first report at Dartford on 2 December 2019. In addition to providing an update on progress the report also 

seeks to draw out any wider insight from the follow-up work, and greater information on actions that have been deferred.  

The table below shows the current actions, and progress against implementation: 

Project 
Service 

Manager 
Report Issue Date & 

Rating 
Agreed actions 

in Final Report 
Actions due 

this Qtr. 
Not yet 

due 
Closed this 

Qtr. 
Agreed Deferrals 

this Qtr.  

Total actions 

complete to 

date  

Total actions 

outstanding1  

Procurement 2018//19 Tim Sams  
November 2018 

Substantial 
2  1 (M)  0  1 (M)  0  2  

  
0  

Accounts Payable 

2018/19 
Tim Sams  

March 2019 
Full 

2  2 (L)  0  2 (L)  0  2  0  

Markets Income 

2016/17 
Lewis Kirnon  

April 2017 
Substantial 

1  1 (M)  0  0  1 (M)  0  
  

1   

Environmental Health 

(Food Safety) 2018/19 
Annie Sargent  

December 2018 
Substantial 

3  1 (M)  0  0  1 (M)  2  1  

Licensing: 

Administration & Fees 

2018/19 

Joanne 

Philpott  
February 2019 

Substantial 
2  2 (M)  0  2 (M) 0  2 0 

Members’ Expenses 

2018/19 

Tim Sams 
December 2018 

Substantial 
1 0 1 (M) 0 0 0 1 

Post GDPR Review 

2018/19 
Marie Kelly-

Stone  
June 2019 
Substantial 

5  4 (3M, 1L)  1 (M)  4 (3M, 1L)  0  4  1  

                                                           
1 Projects with 0 actions outstanding will be removed from future reports and be closed  

P
age 50

A
genda Item

 8



 
 

Project 
Service 

Manager 
Report Issue Date & 

Rating 
Agreed actions 

in Final Report 
Actions due 

this Qtr. 
Not yet 

due 
Closed this 

Qtr. 
Agreed Deferrals 

this Qtr.  

Total actions 

complete to 

date  

Total actions 

outstanding1  

Building Control 
2018/19 

Mark 
Stoneham 

October 2019 
Substantial 

2 0 
2 (1M, 

1L) 
0 0 0 2 

Fleet Vehicle 
Management 2018/19 

Tim Sams 
October 2019 

Substantial 
3 0 

3 (2M, 
1L) 

0 0 0 3 

    TOTAL  21 11  7 9 2 12 9 

Based on the results of our current follow-up work, there are 9 actions that are ‘live’ and which we are monitoring. We will report progress on 

the implementation of these actions as they fall due.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 51

A
genda Item

 8



 
 

Agreed Deferrals 

This table shows the 2 audit actions that have been deferred. Officers have been asked to provide an update on progress, and the reason for 

the deferral. We will follow-up these actions when they fall due:  

 

 

Project Action (including priority) 
Original 
agreed 

date 

Revised 
date 

Reason for deferral 
No. of 
times 

deferred  

Markets Income 
2016/17 

Management should monitor and 
encourage progress towards a higher 

percentage of traders paying by 
standing order and potentially by 

direct debit. (Medium) 

30/6/17 31/01/19 

Audit Comments:  We have continued to keep a regular dialogue 
with the Manager with regards to this action, and have reported 
progress throughout the year to Audit Board. The high level of 
deferrals is unusual, however, each time we have followed-up we 
have seen progress and so have been satisfied that action is being 
taken, just at a slower rate than the service previously expected.  
 
Manager Comments: We are still experiencing some technical issues 
with the system, which KPR are trying to resolve, before we move to 
cashless payments. Progress will be reviewed in January 2020. 

7 

Environmental 
Health (Food 

Safety) 2018/19 

Address the outstanding backlog of 
new premise food inspections. 

(Medium) 

 

31/1/19  
1/4/19 

31/8/19 
 

31/01/20 

Audit Comments: We re-performed our testing on a sample of new 
premise inspections in November 2019. While some of the older 
premises had been inspected, the backlog of inspections has not 
reduced. Management have now agreed to bring in contractor 
resource to address the backlog, and so we will continue to check 
progress in the New Year.   
 
Manager Comments:  There is no additional resource being 
provided. EH Manager has been asked to identify underspends on 
budgets to divert to pay for contractors to complete this backlog 
work. How far this is achieved is dependent on how much 
underspend is available. EHM is working with Finance teams to 
identify. 

3 

P
age 52

A
genda Item

 8



 
 

Follow-up reporting schedule:  

The schedule below sets out the finalised timeline for follow-up exercise and reporting deadlines, 

including the corresponding Audit Board meetings:  

 

Page 53 Agenda Item 8



 
 

Service update  

In January 2019 the Audit Partnership Board agreed to extend the secondment with Mid Kent 

Audit, to provide Audit Management (Chief Audit Executive) from 01/04/2019 to 31/03/2020. In 

October Mid-Kent served notice on the agreement, which means that the secondment will end on 

09/01/2020.  

In preparation for this, the Partnership has been working to update the Audit Manager job 

description and responsibilities (to align with the new structure), have had the role evaluated and 

sought approval to recruit into the permanent role. This post is currently being advertised with 

interviews due to be held on 30 January 2020.    

From 6 January 2020 all posts within the Partnership will be filled, with the only absence being that 

of the Audit Manager (where recruitment is underway). The service therefore has a greater pool of 

skills, expertise and experience to enable delivery of the audit service to be maintained in the short 

term. Looking forward over the next 6 months, key milestones and work streams include:  

 Recruitment of the permanent Audit Manager (CAE) role: Likely to take place between 
January and February 2020, and will require the input from both Partners in addition to the 
Audit Board & Audit Committee Chairmen;  

 Audit planning for 2020/21: Risk assessments and consultations will commence in January 
2020. The audit universe was created in 2019 and therefore can be used as a strong 
foundation to build the 2020/21 audit plan. The Plan will be presented for approval in April 
2020.  

 External Quality Assessment (EQA): A self-assessment against the Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards was conducted in September 2019 and the associated action plan will be 
implemented to prepare the Partnership for the next EQA due in November 2020. In 
accordance with the Standards, the Audit Board and Audit Committee are required to agree 
and scope the appointment of the EQA assessment. Therefore, preparation for this will need 
to commence in early 2020 to enable a formal decision to be made. 

 Ongoing embedding and refinement of the audit approach: The audit manual, approach 
and entire library of supporting documents have all be reviewed, updated and modernised 
over the last 16 months. This has created a strong foundation for the Partnership and one 
that will need time to embed and be refined. Audit quality improvements will continue to 
increase as the approach is embedded and as greater insights are obtained from the work. 
Leadership and support will focus on maintaining this good work over the coming year, 
rather than changing or seeking to redesign it. 

 Continued Professional Development (CPD): This will include the ongoing support, 
mentoring and development of the new Trainee as she commences the IIA Level 7 
Apprenticeship. In addition, one other member of the team is studying towards the CIA 
qualification. Over time this will further strengthen the qualifications within the Partnership. 
Alongside this we have been developing the skills, competencies and expertise across the 
partnership. This will continue and remain a priority for the Partnership so that audit work 
and the shared service can add more value and insight.   

 

 

Page 54Agenda Item 8

https://www.iia.org.uk/qualifications/apprenticeships-in-internal-audit/internal-audit-professional/
https://www.iia.org.uk/qualifications/apprenticeships-in-internal-audit/internal-audit-professional/
https://www.iia.org.uk/qualifications/certified-internal-auditor/


 
 

Acknowledgements 

We would like to thank Officers, Managers and Members for their ongoing support and assistance 

as we undertake our work throughout the year. Internal Audit continues to be seen as a critical 

friend within the Council and we are pleased to report that we do not receive any undue pressure 

or hindrance when undertaking our work.  

In addition, all of the internal work we have been undertaking to review, update and improve our 

service would not have been possible without the hard work and dedication of the audit team, and 

their willingness to embrace new ways of working.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 55 Agenda Item 8



 
 

Appendix I 

Definitions of Assurance ratings: 

OPINION DEFINITIONS 

Full Assurance 

(no High or Medium 
priority actions) 

A sound framework of control is in place that meets Council or 
service objectives. All expected controls tested are in place and are 
operating effectively. 

A review with this level of assurance will generally have no actions, 
or very few LOW priority actions. Agreed actions will be followed up 
as they fall due. 

Substantial Assurance 

(no High priority actions) 

There is generally a sound framework of control in place that meets 
Council or service objectives. However, there are isolated 
weaknesses in design of controls, or inconsistent application of 
controls, which puts the achievement of a limited number of 
objectives at risk. 

A review of this level of assurance may raise a number of MEDIUM 
priority actions. Agreed actions will be followed up as they fall due.  

Limited Assurance 

There are weaknesses within the framework of control or evidence 
of non-compliance with Council procedures or good practice, which 
puts the achievement of the Council’s or service objectives in many 
of the areas reviewed at risk. 

A review with this level of assurance will raise one or more HIGH 
priority actions. Actions with a high priority should be acted on as 
soon as practical and will be followed up as soon as they fall due. 

No Assurance 

Key controls are absent from the framework of control. There are 
fundamental weaknesses identified with both the design and 
operation of the system under review. As a result, it is unlikely that 
Council or service objectives will be achieved. 

A review of this level may include a number of HIGH or CRITICAL 
priority actions. Actions of a critical level will be reported as soon as 
they are identified and escalated to the relevant Senior Manager. 
Actions to address the findings will be followed up as soon as they 
fall due.  

   

 

 

Page 56Agenda Item 8



 
 

Audit Findings Priority Ratings 

Priority  Definition 

Critical 

 Control weakness that could have a significant impact upon not only 
the system, function or process objectives, but also the achievement of 
the organisation’s objectives in relation to: 
• the efficient and effective use of resources 
• the safeguarding of assets  
• the preparation of reliable financial and operational 
 information 
• compliance with laws and regulations 

High 

 Control weakness that has or is likely to have a significant impact upon 
the achievement of key system, function or process objectives. 
This weakness, whilst high impact for the system, function or process 
does not have a significant impact on the achievement of the overall 
organizational objectives. 

Medium 

 Control weakness that has a low impact on the achievement of the key 
system, function or process objectives; or 
This weakness has exposed the system, function or process to a key 
risk, however the likelihood of this risk occurring is low. 

Low 

 Control weakness that does not impact upon the achievement of key 

system, function or process objectives; however, implementation of the 

recommendation would improve overall control. 

Advisory 

 Observations and areas for consideration, these findings are drawn 

from our shared experience of working across the Council and more 

widely with partners. These findings require no formal response and 

will not be followed up. 

 
 

Page 57 Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 58



 
AUDIT BOARD 
22 January 2020 

 

SELECTIVE INVOICE CHECKS 

 

1. Summary 

 

1.1 After the October 2019 meeting of the Board, the Chairman selected five 
creditor payments for checking. This report summarises the findings of this 
exercise and provides the opportunity for Members to select a further five 
payments for checking.  
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1  That Members note the content of this report and request any further 

explanations as required. 

2.2  That Members select five further payments for checking by Internal Audit. 

 
3. Background and Discussion 

 
 

3.1. It is a regular feature of the Audit Board’s work for Members to select a 
sample of payments made by the Council for review. Following review 
of these payments, Members receive a report on the findings, and 
consider them as part of each meeting. This is intended to provide 
Members with reasonable assurance that goods and services 
commissioned or procured, for which payments have been made, are in 
compliance with Council procedures. In particular, that they have been 
properly authorised, requisitioned, ordered and received, prior to making 
payment. 

3.2. At their last meeting (23 October 2019) the Audit Board agreed a 
proposal to update the method by which payments are selected each 
month. Previous reports were arranged by alphabet, whereas the 
revised report would look back at the last quarter, to ensure that 
transactions tested were current.  

3.3. The following approach was agreed:  

Meeting SIC Selection 
Transaction Report 

Parameters 

Q1 (April – June) A B C D E F Jan to March 

Q2 (July – September) G H I J K L M April – June 

Q3 (October – 
December) 

N O P Q R S July – September 

Q4 (January – March) T U V W X Y Z October – December 

 

3.4. As this was a new approach, the transaction report was generated after 
the Audit Board meeting, and Members requested that the Chairman 
pick 5 transactions at random.  

Page 59 Agenda Item 9



 
AUDIT BOARD 
22 January 2020 

 
 

3.5. The following five payments were selected at random: 

 Simply Rented Ltd    £1,260.00 (Gross) 
 Pinsent Masons LLP                   £1,297.20 (Gross) 
 Prentis Solutions Ltd       £1,219.92 (Gross) 
 Shelter Training                         £1,088.40 (Gross) 
 Suez Recycling UK Ltd    £375.04 (Gross) 

 
4. Summary of Findings 

 
4.1 The results of testing confirm that all the spend decisions were made 

appropriately and in compliance with Council procedures. Detailed 
summaries of the outcome of each payment are set out below. 
 

5. Detailed Findings 
 
5.1 Simply Rented Ltd (£1,260.00 gross) – This payment was for the supply 

of temporary, emergency accommodation for a family of four, who were 
placed in a two-bedroom flat in Greenhithe for the month of June 2019. 
The rate for the accommodation was charged at £42.00 per day to the 
Council.  Simply Rented are one of the letting agents used by Housing 
to source this type of temporary accommodation. Testing confirmed that 
the payment was justified, made promptly and in accordance with 
payment procedures 

 
5.2 Pinsent Masons LLP (£1,297.20 gross) – This payment was for legal 

work in connection with the sale of one of the plots on The Bridge 
development in June 2019.  The appointment of the external Solicitors 
originated from proposals for The Bridge development, approved by 
Cabinet on 12 December 2002. The invoice from Pinsent Masons was 
received by the Council on 4 July 2019 and paid promptly on 18 July 
2019. Testing confirmed that the payment was justified, made promptly 
and in accordance with payment procedures. 

 
5.3 Prentis Solutions Ltd (£1,219.92 gross) – This payment was for the 

supply of a temporary member of staff in the Housing Options and 
Advice team.  This specific invoice was for the period week ending 1 
September 2019. The temporary Case Worker has been in post since 
June 2019 and is expected to remain until September 2020. They are 
backfilling the post of the current Housing Options and Private Sector 
Manager, who is covering that post whilst the original manager is on 
secondment. Prentis Solutions specialise in Local Authority, Housing 
and Education sectors, and were used to source a suitable candidate. 
Testing confirmed that the payment was justified, made promptly and in 
accordance with payment procedures. 

 
 
 

Page 60Agenda Item 9



 
AUDIT BOARD 
22 January 2020 

 
 

5.4 Shelter Training (£1,088.40 gross) – This payment was for the provision 
of Immigration Status and Eligibility training to members of the Housing 
team. The training was provided at the Civic Centre on 6 February 2019. 
A purchase order, using the council procurement system, had not been 
raised.  Staff from other local authorities attended the training session 
and were charged a rate of £80.00 +VAT per delegate. This helped to 
keep the costs down for the Council, while still providing the right level 
of training and development. Testing confirmed that the payment was 
justified, made promptly and in accordance with payment procedures. 
 

5.5 Suez Recycling UK Ltd (£375.04 gross) – This payment was for the 
emptying of the two paladins located at the Civic Centre, which are 
emptied twice a week. This invoice was for the services provided during 
July 2019.  There were some additional charges of £29.55 for excess 
weight, but this was due to the increase in rubbish following the recent 
office relocations. Suez have recently written to the Council regarding a 
price increase, which will come in to force from 1 January 2020.  
However, this has prompted the Support Services Supervisor to look at 
other suppliers to seek a price comparison and secure value for money.  
Although a purchase order had not been raised using the Council’s 
purchase ordering system, once a new supplier has been identified an 
annual purchase order will be raised. Testing confirmed that the payment 
was justified, made promptly and in accordance with payment 
procedures. 
  

6. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 

Not applicable 
 

7. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments 

 

Financial Implications While there are no financial implications 
associated with the outcomes detailed in the 
report. Compliance with agreed financial 
procedures helps to ensure that the Council 
maintains a sound systems of financial control 
and governance.  

Legal Implications None 

Staffing Implications None 

Administrative Implications None 

Risk Assessment Obtaining goods and services on behalf of the 
Council carries potential inherent risks of 
fraud, or misappropriation. The Selective 
Invoice Checks’ process is one of many steps 
employed by the Council to manage fraud 
risks and to ensure value for money. 

Page 61 Agenda Item 9



 
AUDIT BOARD 
22 January 2020 

 
  
8. Details of Exempt Information Category 
 

Not applicable 
 
9. Appendices 
 

None 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents 
consulted 

Date Report Author 
Section & 

Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

 

None 
 

20/12/19 
 
 

Audit Manager 
01322 343004 

Internal Audit Partnership 
& 
Strategic Director (Internal 
Services) 

N/A 

 

Page 62Agenda Item 9


	Agenda
	3 Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 23 October 2019
	7 Report from the External Auditor
	Item 7 App A Dartford Borough Council Audit Board Progress Report January 2020
	Item 7 App B Chair of AC -  Fraud Laws and Regs Letter to TCWG - 201920 DBC

	8 Internal Audit Update Report (January 2020)
	Item 8 Appendix A FINAL - Internal Audit Update Report (January 2020)

	9 Selective Invoice Checks

